Company Registration No. 06308595 (England and Wales)

THE BASILDON ACADEMIES
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT AND AUDITED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

CONTENTS

Reference and administrative details

Trustees' report

Governance statement

Statement on regularity, propriety and compliance

Statement of trustees' responsibllites

independent auditor's report on the accounts

Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity

Statement of financial activitles including Income and expenditure account

Balance sheet

Statement of cash flows

Notes fo the accounts including accounting policies

Page

17 - 21

22

23

24-27

28-29

30-31

32

33

34-53




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS

Members

Trustees

Senior management team

Company secretary
Company registration number

Registered office

Independent auditor

M Logan

N Luckock (Resigned 31/08/2024)

D Patel

O Jagun

D O'Donoghue (Appolinted 01/09/2024)

N Luckock (Chalr of Trustees) (Resigned 31 August 2024)

G Smith

A Gurney

K Bobbin

L Smith

T Montgomery {Resigned 31 August 2024)

O South {Chair of Finance & Pianning Commitles™")

D O'Donoghue {Chalr of Trustees*) (Appeinted 2 October 2023)

J Barak {Appointed 21 November 2023 and resigned 31 August 2024)
A Paveling

MD Newalil {(Appointad 28 June 2024)

* b O'Donoghue was appointed Chair of Trustees on 1 September 2024
** O South was appeinted Chair of Finance & Planning Committee

on 1 September 2024

G Smith -CEO

T Darker - Director of Finance & Operations
A Gurney - Trust School Improvement Leader
L Sherman - Headteacher

R Rees - Headteacher

V Oddy - Director of Standards

Schofleld Sweeney LLP
06308596 (England and Wales)

Wickford Avenue
Pitsea

Basildon

Essex

£813 3HL

Rickard Luckin Limited
Phoenix House, Suite 8
Chtistopher Martin Road
Baslidon

Essex

8514 3EZ




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The trustees present thelr annual report together with the accounts and auditer's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024, The annual report serves the purpose of bath a trustees' report

and a directors’ report under company law.

Constituted as a Multi Academy Trust the charitable company operates 2 schools the Basildon Lower Academy and
Basildon Upper Academy, The Basildon Acadermies had a roll of 1930 in the October 2023 schoot census (Upper

Academy - 906, L.ower Acaderny - 1024},

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Basiidon Academies Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary goveming documents of the Academy Trust,
the trustees of The Basildon Academies are also directors of the Charltable Company for the purpose of company

law.
The Charitable Company is known as the Basildon Academies.

Details of the trustees who served throughout the period are Included in the Reference and Administrative details
section,

The operation of the academies and employment of staff remain the responsibility of the Board of Trustees and the
trust retains the control of budgets and finances, and monitors these through its Finance & Planning Committee.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased fo be a

membar,

Trustees' indemnities

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA}), an alternative to
insurance where UK Government funds cover losses that arise, This scheme protects Trustees, (Govemnors and
Officers from clalms arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business, and

provides cover up to £10,000,000.

hod o itme oint tion of
It Is the Chair's responsibility to consider the range and balance of skills required on the board of {rustess. The
arrangements for recruitment are set out in the Articles and Funding Agreement.

Policies a edur ed for the | a fra f frustee

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing expetience. The Trust is
committed to providing adequate opportunities for Trustees and Governors to receive suitable training in order to be
able to perform their role effectively. Where necessary inductian will provida training on charity, education, legal and
financial matters,

All new trustees will be given a tour of the Academies and have the chance to meet with staff and students. All
Trustees are provided with copies of polictes, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets and any other documents as

appropriate to {heir role,




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Govemnance of the Trust is defined in the Memorandum and Articles of Association together with the funding
agreement with the Department of Education.

The Articles of Assaciation have appointed a Board of Trustees to be responsible for the statutory and constitutional
affalrs of the Charitabla Company and the management of the Academy.

Accountabllity
The Basildon Academies Trust Board of Trustees delegates responsibliity for delivery of the vision and strategy to

the Chief Executive. The Basildon Academies Trust Trustees Board holds the Chief Executive to account for the
performance of the Trust, including the performance of the academies within the Trust. The Chief Executive in turn

holds the Headteacher and executive leaders to account,

The Scheme of Delegation also includes delegation to the Chief Executive, Headteacher and Academy Heads of
School as well as to the commitiees of the Board of Trustees. The Board cannot delegate its responsibility or
accountability, but delegates some of the detailed scrutiny, oversight and decisian-making.

The Chief Executive, Executive Leaders and school leaders will report to the trust board on the performance of the
Trust including on the performance of the Trust's scheols, although this may be supplemented by monitoring reports
from the governing body committeas.

The Basildon Academies Trust Board determines an a case-by-case basis whether to delegate some day-to-day
decision making, actions and monitoring concerning the performance of each academy fo the Local Goveming Body

committees.

The number of Trustees shall be not fess than three but (unless otherwise determined by ordinary resclution) shall
not be subject to any maximum.




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES® REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Organisational struclure
Trustees are appointed by Members,
Trustees are appointed for their knowledge skilts and/or experience in the following areas as required by the Board:
. Corporate and Business Strategy/Development
« Financial management/Accounting
. Asset management
. Communication, Marketing and PR
» Education QA & Standards
+ Special Education Needs
+ Safeguarding
+ Enhanced and Alternative Provisions
« Child Support Services
. Education Assessment Frameworks, curriculum development
« Educational Charities
» County and Locat Council
. Chisf Executive Officer (Trust Performance and Development)




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The trustees are the charity trustees (within the terms of section 177(1) of the Charities Act 2011) and are
responsible for the general control and management of the administration of the trust in accordance with the
provisions set out in the memorandum and articles of association, The board of trustees is the accountable body
for the performance of all schools within the trust and as such must:

. Ensure clarlty of vislon, ethos and strategic direction
. Held the executive to account for the educational performance of the schaols and thelr pupils, and the

performance management of staff
. Overses the financial performance of the trust and make sure its monsy is well spent

Because trustees are bound by both charity and company law, the terms ‘rustees’ and ‘directors’ are offen
used Interchangeably. We use the term trustee as it avoids the possible confusion caused when executive

leaders are called directors.

The Basildon Academies Trust board is permitted fo exercise all the powers of the academy trust. The trust
board will delegate to the Chief Executive responsibility for the day to day operations of the trust. The trustees
can determine whether to delegate any governance functions.

The trust has the right to review and adapt its governance structure at any time which includes removing
delegation,

The Academy Trust may also have any Co-opted Trustee appointed under Article 58. The total number of Trustees
who are employees of BAT shall not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees.

The first Trustees shall be those persons named In the statement delivered pursuant to sections 8 and 12 of the
Companies Act 2006, 49.

Future Trustees shall be appointed or elected, as the case may be, under these Articles. Where it is not possible for
such a Trustee fo be appointed or elected due to the fact that an Academy has not yet been established, then the

relevant Article or part thereof shall not apply.

The Board will mest as often as is necessary to fulfil its responsibifiies and not jess than four times in every school
year. Meetings will be called by the Chalr of the Trust Board.

The trustees are the charity trustees (within the terms of section 177(1) of the Charitles Act 2011} and are
responsible for the general control and management of the administration of the trust In accordance with the
provisions set out in the memorandum and articles of association. The board of trustees is the aceountable body for
the performarice of all schaols within the trust and as such must:

« Ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction
. Hold the executive to account for the educational perfermance of the schools and their puplls, and the

performance management of staff
« Oversee the financlal performance of the trust and make sure its money Is well spent
- and to consider all matlers relating to cumiculum, sfaff and pay, finance, students and any general-purpose

matters.




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Role of the Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive has the delegated responsibliity for the operation of the trust including the performance of
the trust's academiles and ensuring the performance management of the Executive Leaders and Headteachers
is carried out.

The Chief Executive Is the Accounting Officer so has overall respensibility for the operation of the academy
trust's financial responsibllities and must ensure that the organisation is run with financlal effectiveness and

stability, avoiding waste and securing value for money.

The Chief Executive leads the executive leadership team of the acadetny trust.

The Chief Executive wiil delegate executive leadership/management functions to the executive leadership team
and Is accountable to the trust board for the performance of the executive leadership team.

The Role of Executive Leaders
Executive Leaders will undertake leadership roles across all academies within the frust, as well as carrying out

delegated executive leadership/management funcfions by the Chief Executive.

The core role of the Headteacher is to provide strategic leadership and professional management within their
schools, securing success and Improvement for the schools. Ensure high quality education and personalised
learning for all its pupils and high standards and achievement in all areas of the school's work.

The care role of the Chief Finance & Operations Officer is to provide strategic leadership and oversee operational
responsibility for the school finances, human resouTces, procurement, site, premises and facilities, health and
safety, capital projects and income generation, catering and third-party gontracts. To ensure that the systems in
place provide the school with efficlent and effective service delivery that suppart student progression, and
combliance with statutory and legislative requirements.

Arrangements for setfing pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Pay and remuneration of key management personnel is decided by a variety of contributory factors, such as pay
scales, outcomes of Performance Management reviews and any nationally agreed pay awards that are recognised
In accordance with the Trust's Pay Policy.

Performance Management reviews are camied out by Line Managers and signed off by the Headteacher.
Performance Management review for the CEQ is carried out by the Chair of Trustees. Trustees are not paid for their
roles within the Academmy.

T {s) ility ti
The number of employees who were relevant union officials during the period was none.

During the Year there was no time spent on facility time and £nil spent on facility time.




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Engagement with employees

The Academy has iImplemented the following initiatives relating to employee engagement
Staff portal - training, news, websites, MIS, safeguarding, PMR, shared drives elc

Weekly staff briefings - in person, all staff

Weekly staff briefing provided electronically

Half termly CEO presentations - vision, updates, next steps

Staff newsletters, emailed and published In shared drive

Staff surveys and updates on actions taken - 'you sald, we did’

INSET days

Whola staff and target group/team emails set up

The Directors have engaged with employees in the following ways:
Trustee visits to academy sites, classrooms

presence and support during regulatory body visits

Attendance at academy events

Staff presentations at trust meetings
Trustees members of committees - curriculum committee - engage with employees on shaping curriculum

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The objective of the Trust is to advance for the public benefit education in the UK, establishing, maintaining, catrying
on, managing and developing schoaols providing high quality education to students from all backgrounds by offering
a broad and balanced curriculum and fostering collaboration across the Trust schools, other schools, educational
establishments, the wider community for the benefit of the community and in line with aur ethas, vision and values.

Vision and values

Ethos
The Basildon Academies Trust's ethos ‘Aspire — Believe — Achieve’is reflected In an uncomptomising belief from all

stakeholders that our students can and will achieve in our leaming communities, which are Inclusive and
supportive.

Vision Statement
The trust's vision is to create and grow inclusive, cross-phase and key stage academies that provide equality of

opportunity for young psople le achieve academic excellence.
Strategic Goals

Ensure all students recelve a high-quality and inclusive education in good and improving schaols,

Grow our trust model to Incorporate additional pathways and providers that strengthen education provisions
for vulnerable children,

Deliver an outstanding careers currculums leading to high quality deslinations for all.

Provide effective execullve leadership and governance, strategic direction, and a culture of accountability.
Dellver a curriculum for all that Is broad and balanced, providing a wide range of cultural capital

opportunities for students.
Provide outstanding wellbeing, enrichment and personal development programmes that suppart Inclusive

education for all.
Maintain financial and operational sustainabliity, incorporating effective systems & processes that enable a

3-year programme of growth and capital investment.
8. Invest In our people; grow our own leaders and specialists valuing stakeholder wellbeing and managing

workload,

NS R N




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Values

SMSC is at the heart of all of our academies.

All academies within the BAT set their development objectives under the following values:

s

M
S
c

Soclal Mobility: Equality of opportunity for our young people to aspire and achiave,
Moral Purpose: Resilient active decision makers
Spiritual Awareness: Refleclive citizens & curious learners

Cultural Capital: Equity of opportunity for our young people to aspire & achieve,

Our success in fulfilling our aims can be measured by:

. Ofsled reports

Continued good or better teaching throughout the school
Student attainment at the end of KS4 (Key Stage 4) and KS5 meets or exceeds national average {NA)

The improvement in the gap between disadvantaged groups and other groups of students

. Increased pupil numbers (Year 7, year 12)

Retention to Sixth Form
% of students entering Academic pathway

. Retention to Sixth Form — 45%
% of students entering Academi¢ pathway
. Achieve endorsement for our curriculum model from:

+ Stakeholders
. Regulator (Ofsted)
. Achleve tha DIE EBACC ambiltion

_ Sustained decrease in student Persistent Absenteeism, inc. PPG & SEND, by key stage - Termly SNA
. Maintain a 'no exclusion’ ethos - Termly SNA

Unqualified audit reports
Balanced budget
Trust growth

The Basildon Academies' strategy is encompassed In its strategic goals stated above. To this end it recognises the
need to be innovative and chaltenging In the approach to:

.
.
.
.
-
L]

“The subdivision of the two Academies' populations by age range {11-14 and 14-18)

The grouping of students

The organisation, management and governance of the Academies'

The building design and organisation of the leaning environments

The organisation, management and development of staff

The delivery of services that support individual puplls and families

The way business is engaged, and how the two Academies can impact on the prosperity, effectiveness and
development of the local community and future business

The celebrating of success, the setting of targets and the robust monitoring of performance

Public bengfit
The Trustees believe that by working towards the objectives and alms of the Trust as detailed above, they have

complied with their duly to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the Charlty Commission.

The Academy serves the local community by providing resources and facilities for all people of a range of ages.
Activities provided through the letting of the facilities are exercise classes, swimming lessons, football, netball and a
range of other activilies that can be accessed by the Jocal community.




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

The Trust confinued is mission to ensure that students achleved their potential in public examinations, encouraged
a wide range of extra-curricular activities; developed and retained suitable staff and guided students in suitable

progression when they left thelr school.

The Academies have completed their 14th year of operation and pupil numbers continue to grow,

The Basildon Academies Trust continued achievements during the year ending 31st August 2024 include:
. Ofsted GOOD - overall effectiveness — Upper Academy inspection
. Increase in reserves to support future capital investment
. Continued growth In student numbers KS3,4,5 — including increase in mid-term admissions
Increase the number of post-18 students entering academic pathways
Exclusion and suspension rates below national averages
UNICEF Rights Respecting Schools Gold Status
Healthy Schools Enhanced Report status. Essex Child & Wellbeing Service
Established links with PRUs & other local providers fo support outreach & MTA transition
Exgellence in Personal Development Award (EPDA)
Best Practice Teaching Assistants Award (BPTAA)
Leading Parent Partnership Award (LPPA)
Gatshy Benchmarks achieved
Capital investment - CIF funded projects completed at Lower Academy
Increase onsite KS3&4 Alternate Provision capacity
Establish links with PRUs & other local providers to support outreach & MTA fransition
KS2 outreach programme for ‘at risk pfex pupils’

a ®» s w w 3 & ¥ B = & = =

Kev performance |ndicators

The Trustees receive regular information from its sub committees to enable them to monitor the performance of the
Trust compared to aims, sirategies and financial budgets. The performance of the Academies Is assessed through!
« Pupil numbers, retention and admissions
« Curriculum events
Exam resulis
Facilities
Post 16 leaming and students moving onto university
Staff Performance Reviews
Ofsted Rating
Trust Performance Summary Review

+ 4 & & a =

Going concetn

After making appropriate enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate
resources fo continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of going concern

basls can be found In the Statement of Accounting Policles.

The Basildon Academies Executive Leadership Team have continued to review its staffing structure and during the
year have continued to monitor the Teacher Contact Ratle, ensuring it falis within the recammended benchmark.
This has contributed to continued savings against budget and increasing the reserves that will be used going

farward on capital projects.




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Protecting the success of the academy trust

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires the directors to act in the way they consider, in goed faith, would
be most likely to promote the success of the charity to achieve its charitable purposes.

Promoting the Trust's success.

The Trust is strongly committed to serving Basildon to transform the life chances of children and their communities
through the highest quality teaching, provisions, leadership, wider opportunities and support, in good and improving
schools.

Our academies serve areas with significantly high levels of students eligible for Free School Meals and with Special
Educational Needs and s continually looking to expand to reach as many children as possible to improve their

quality of life, experiences and cuitural capital.

We pride ourselves on defivering Inclusive schools that welcome everyone.

The likely consequence of any decision in the long term.

The Trust makes all key decision through refarence to our long-term “Trust Strategic Development Plan’. This TSDP
s primarily eentred on 8 strategic goals fo ensure students receive high quality and inclusive education, but every
declsion and operational approach is regularly reviewed for its impact on all stakeholders and the need for any
changes or modifications te decislons previously taken,

Our students and parents.

As a Trust, we put our students at the heart of everything we do. That s part of the Trust's culture: the parents of the
students in our academies are continuously informed of the progress of their children and the safeguarding

measures in place to ensure the safety of their children,

We communicate with parents through letters, telephone or emalls, afong with face to face meetings, to ensure that
they are constantly aware of the activities of the Trust. We organise parent-teacher meetings, parent drop-ins,
parent forums, parent training sessions, focussed email accounts for specific concems (safeguarding, complaints
otc) and listen to parents’ concerns to improve the service we provide.

The interests of the company’s employees.

The Trustees recognise that employees are fundamental and key to delivering the strategic plan of the Trust. The
success of the Trust depends on attracting, retaining and motivating employees. We help to engage with our
employees by setling remuneration above the national level, providing an equitable PMR precess, and providing a
rigorous professional development review process and relevant training, with access to nationally recognised

professional qualifications.

-0 -




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

We measure employee engagement through regular foedback and joint communication sessions. We address any
issues ralsed by our employees as quickly as possible and communicate back to them what we have done, All staff
are offered access to several well-being support services and the Trust seeks to ensure that staff welfare is actively
considared and addressed. Through our health and safety, and staff wellbelng palicies, as well as through staff
wellbeing committees, we also actively seek to ensure that the working environment meets due high standards of

safety and securlty.

An example of a wellbeing service the Trust provides the Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) for alf our stafl.
The EAP is a confidential counselling and Information service, which is available 24/7, to assist staff with personal

or work-related problems that may affect their heaith, wellbeing and performance.
The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers, and others.

Our relationships with partners and suppliers are key to our sffectiveness. The Trust actively seeks to engage in
service reviews with all key suppliers. These reviews are focussed on a two-way refationship with the Trust based
with an aim of halping ohe ancther to achieve an optimum service as efflciently as possible and according to the
best value for money, Where the Trust has procured autsourced services, we seek to ensure that staff and
management from that contractor are supported as an equal member of the school commumity and stakeholders.

We communicate with our suppliers through emalls, specifically designed supplier forms and letters to update on
any changes on terms and conditions. Qur suppllers all have a direct channel of contacting the Trust for any
changes on their suppller accounts, which are actioned promptly to avoid any defay in payment. During the financial
year, the Trust remained committed to prompt payment terms to ensure fair payment practices.

The impact of the company's operations on the commu nity and the environment.

We recognise our responsibility to care for the snvironment and aim to minimise otk environmental impact in ali our
activities.

As well as covering environmental issues in our school curriculum {one of our student values and a curriculum focus
during half term & Is ‘Climate Change Is Real), the Trust encourages all staff and students to participate In initiatives
to reduce negative environmental impacts. These include the promotion of recycling of waste and actions to

maximise efficlency in energy consumption,

The Trust Board is committed to reducing our carbon footprint. As part of our successful CIF hids, we are Installing
LED lights an a rolling basis across our academies to Improve the energy efficiency of our bulldings where possible.
These successful CIF projects also include includes Improving and updating heating equipment to more energy
efflcient plant. The Trust has recently completed a significant investment into our swimming pool facllities that
included replacing all plant to more efflelent models. Wa dispose of waste responsibly and recycle materials whare

possible,

-11 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct,

Our reputation, level of public trust and confidence ls vital to our fulure success. We use and promote our
organisational values, ethas and vision in our recruitment and training for our employees to ensure that we malntain
high standards, and these are used in our appraisal processes, Our procurement and ethical policies and
procedures ensure that our values are also part of our selection of partners and suppliers.

The need to act fairly as between members of the company.

in terms of members of the academy Trust, faimess In our dealings Is upheld through having a clear and well
communicated strategy, and financial discipline backed by strong internal cendrols, and transparent reporting at
regular Intervals through the year. We alm to be a fully inclusive organisation and we will not {or tolerate) unfairly
diseriminate against our students, staff or any other member of our community and stakeholders,

Our regulatory funding partners.

The Trust Board believes that constant engagement with the DFE, ESFA, Local Authorities and other government
agencies is vital to our success.

Our CEO and Executive Leaders have ensured that our Trust adheres to all regulatory and legal requiremants In
delivering educational service and activitles.

Financial review

The Academy's’ principal source of income if the General Annual Grant (GAG) and other grants that it recelves from
The Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). The grants received during the year ended 31% August 2024 and the
associated expenditure are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy also received grants for Fixed Assets, The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual
depreclation charges over the expected life of the assets concerned. The Lower Academy has been successful in its
bid for CIF funding for a further project warks to both roof and electrical upgrades were completed.

As 31¢ August 2024 the net book value of fixed asssts was £46,145,968. Movements in tangible fixed assets are
shown in note 13 to the financial statements. The assets wers used exclusively for providing education and
associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.

For the year ending 315t August 2024 the Trust received £10,816,198 of GAG funding. The expenditure during the
year ehding 31¢ August 2024 equalled £15,073,603 and was covered by the recurrent grant from the ESFA together

with other incoming resources.

The Academy participates in the Essex Pension Fund. The Academy's share of the fund's assets and llabifitles Is
£11,255,000 at 31 August 2024, however the net gain recognised on scheme assets has been restricted because
the full pension surplus is not expected to be recovered through refunds or reduced contributions in the future.
Therefore the balance recognised in the Academy's financial stataments at 31 August 2024 js £nil.

Reserves policy
The Trustees are aware of the requirement to balance current and future needs and always aim to set a balanced

budget with annual income balancing expenditure. The Trustees review the reserve tevels annually and monitor any
estimated year-snd carry forward balances via the Monthly Management accounts received via the Director of

Finance & Operations.

The Trust have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be equivalent to 2 weeks expenditure,
approximately £560k. The Academies have now been performing at a surplus for a number of years and as at year
end 31% August 2024 have returned the Academy wilh a reserves position to having a year-end oarry forward
reserve of £1,687,500 (excluding the fixed asset fund and pension fund).

The reserves will he used to support the expansion plan of the Trust and to continue with the 3 year capital
investment plan. This plan focuses on upgrading both the IT infrastructure and facilities within both schools to

support continued growth in student numbers,

12




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Academies principal goal Is to safeguard its long-term abllity to attract high calibre staff and deliver an exceflent

education to Academy pupils, and to mainlain and renew its physical facilites whilst driving growth in current
student numbers.

Key uncertainties are student number and the extent and impact of changes to Government funding and an
uncertain economic and financial environment that puts pressure on enterprise, capital projects and operation
expenditures.

The Executive Leadership Team maintain a central risk register that identifies the major risks to the major risks, to

which the Trust is exposed. This register is approved and monitored via the Finance Committee with a formal review
undertaken on an annual basis by the Chief Finance & Operations Officer.

Financlal and risk management objectives and policles

As a Mulli Academy Trust operating two schools, the level of financlal risk is low. Cash flows can be reliably
forecast, monitared and reported, Staff costs make up the majority of the expenditure and are relatively stable with
contingencies in place to cover such items such as sickness and maternity.

The Trust is exposed to a number of financial risks, including credit, cash flow and liquidity risks, The Directors,
Governors and Senior Leaders are responsible for the administration and management of the Academy’s affairs and
gnsuring that:

. Effective systems of internal control are in place and that accounting records are properly kept;

« Appropriate financlal management confrols are in place to safeguard the assels of the Academy and

prevent and detect fraud; and
. The Academy secures economical, efficient and effective financial management of its resources and

expenditure

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

2024

Energy consumption kWh
Aggregate of energy consumption in the year

- 3as combustion 1,417,956

- Electricity purchased 1,504,035

2,921,911

2024

Emissions of COZ equivalent
Scape 1 - direct emissions

- Gas combustion 259.34
- Fuel consumed for owned transport -

269.34
Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased 311.41
Scope 3 - other indirect emlssions
- Fuel sonsumed for transport not owned by the academy trust -
Total gross emissions 570,75
Intensily ratio

0.31

Tonnes CO2e per pupil

metric tonnes

-13-
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Quantification and reporting methadology
We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporling Protocol — Carporate Standard and have used the 2024 UK Govemment's Gonversion Factors for

Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement rafio is tolal gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the

recommended ratio for the sector,

Measures taken fo improve energy efficiency
Here at Basildon Academies we want to encourage our students and staff to be increasingly aware of the
envirohment and the Impact it has on us and the world around us.

The values of our Academy are to drive Social Mobifity creating equality of opportunity far our young peuvple to
succeed, establish Moral Purpose through resilient positive decislon makers, provide Cultural Capital necessary for
equity of opportunity and life experiences, and enhance Spiritual Awareness that results in reflective citizens and

active curious learners.

Our students have agency over the values we promote as an Academy and these values represent out role as
UNICEF Gold Rights Respecting Ambassadors. One of the student values of our Academy is “Climate Change is
real” and our valuas are at the heart of our work and curfculum,

We are working hard to become a sustainable Academy with a wide range of sustainable projects that have been
introduced. We are constantly focusing on working towards reducing our ecological and carbon foot print. Are aware
of the vital roles schools and academies play In ensuring students and staff are made aware of utilising sustainable
methods that Is contributary fo our eco system and make changes that protect our environment, enabling us all to
halt the effects of global warming. We are constantly investing and helping our students and staff to develop skills
and attitudes to be more vigilant on choices that are made that impact the environment by ensuring that our values
are an important focus and promoted through our curriculum.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Teaching/Learning ~ Making everyone aware of the environmental impacts through learning

. Breath space — Running a gardening club whereas student leam to grow thelr own fruit and veg and using
there home grown produce in cooking classes.

+ Recycling — We have made changes to our waste disposal system by introducing recycling bins for
different types of materials and ensure that wasle paper bins are in each classroom.

. Planting Trees — We have encouraged our siudent and staff to plant trees and explained the benefits on
how they impact our eco system

. Geography — Teaching students the impact of climate change and the impact it has for everyone on a
global aspect

. Bottles — Replacing plastic and tin drinks with a reusabie recycled water bottle that is given free to each
student for the length of their academic year

. Communication — implantation of screens around the school to publicise Informatton relating to the school
and the use of Social media to help move away from printed material.

Building, Energy and Grounds — Ensuring steps are taken through our maintenance programmes to reduce
environmental Impacts

. Furniture - Replacing furniture in and around the school to a more sustainable material .e. recycled plastic
. Lights — Replacing lights to LED intemally and externally with auto switch off capabilities

. Boilers and Heating — Enhancing our distribution system to a more energy efficient system and betler
control of temperature distribution for particular areas within the school,

. Technology - Implementation of energy efficient IT equipment i.e. Teacher desk and IT suites

+ Printing — Introducing “follow me print” which reduces the amount of paper that is printed and wasted.
Culture/Community — Help support the wider communities through recycling and transportation

. Unlforms ~ Second-hand uniform bank

. Old equipment — Upcycling old redundant equipment or transferring assets to Incal schools

. Schoals - Encouraging students and staff to walk between sites

« Transport - Encouraging the use of public transport for educational visils if possible
Condition Imprevement Funding
The Basildon Academies are actively seeking support through the CIF Funding stream to improve our sustainability,
We are working towards submitting 3 projects this year across our academies as follows:

. Basildon Upper Academy — Electrical Project to change all lighting to LED which in turn will reduce energy
consumption

. Basildon Upper Academy — Roof Project to increase insulation to the roof coverings to improve thermai
performance

. Basildon Lower Academy — Heating Project to install more efficient boilers to reduce emissions and
improve efficlencies.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Plans for future periods
Future Developments
The Academy will continue to strive to raise aspirations and achievement of ali students within the Academy as well

as those in the wider community of East Basildon through the use of the Academy’s excellent facilities, curriculum
materials and staff expertise and through the provision of excellent learning experiences.

Our aim is to have high expectations and belief in every child and ¢ontinue to bring about further and sustainable
improvement In attendance, behaviour and attainment and make the Academy a place in which children, parents

and stakeholders can be justifiably proud.

Auditor
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

« “There is no relevant audit information which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and

. Trustees have taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a trustee in order to be aware of any
relevant audit Information and lo establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of that

information.

The trustees’ report, incorf rating a stralegic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on ij“ | 24... and signed on its behalf by:

Dicee, Dol

D O'Denoghue
Chair of Trustees*
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Basildon Academies has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a sysiem is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustess has delegated the day to day responsibililes to the CEQ as Accounting Officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and goed financial management and in accordance
with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The Basildon Academies
and the Secretary of State for Education, They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trusteas any
matetial weaknesses or breakdown in internal cantrol,

Governance
Board of Trustees

The information on governance Included here supplements that desctibed in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 5 times during the year, Attendance
during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

N Luckock (Chair of Trustees) (Resigned 31 August 2024)

G Smith

A Gumey

K Bobbir

L Smith

T Montgomery (Resigned 31 August 2024)

O South (Chalr of Finance & Planning Committee™)

D O‘Donoghue (Chair of Trustees*) (Appolnted 2 October 2023)

J Barak (Appointed 21 November 2023 and resigned 31 August 2024)
A Paveling

MD Newell (Appointed 28 June 2024)

* D O'Donoghue was appointed Chair of Trustees on 1 September
2024

* O South was appointed Chair of Finance & Planning Committee
on 1 September 2024

SN NG
“ NG oo
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Trust board meetings were held on:

05/10/23
14/12/23
15/02/24
23/05/24
11/07/24

The Board will meet as often as is necessary to fulfil ils responsibiiities and not less than four times in every school

year. Meetings will be called by the Chair of the Trust Board.

The trustees are the charity trustees (within the terms of section 177(1) of the Charitles Act 2011} and are
responsible for the general control and management of the administration of the trust in accordance with the
provisions set out in the memorandum and articles of association, The board of trustees is the accountable body
for the performance of all schools within the trust and as such must:

. Ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction

. Hold the executive to account for the educational performance of the schools and their pupils, and the
performance management of staff

. Oversee the financial performance of the trust and make sure Its money Is well spent

. and to consider all matters relating to curriculum, staff and pay, finance, students and any generai-

purpese matters.

The Execulive Leadership of the trust provide the board with written daia reports relevant to the agenda of the
meeting and the data that is received is of a high standard that is acceptable to the board.

The Academy undertakes a programme of refevant and timely training to support trustees and governors. The Trust
board and committees are constituted with relevant experience. Trustees are appointed for their knowledge skills

andfor experience In the following areas as required by the Board:

Corporate and Business Strategy/Development
Financial management

Asset management

Communication, Marketing and PR

L.egal Systems

Edugcation QA & standards

Special Education Needs

County and Locai Coungil
Chief Executive Officer (Trust Performance and Development)

A review Is made of skillsets/training requirernents as part of self and group evaluations,

T S A
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Sub-Committees

The Trustees have established committees (Local Governing Bodies and Finance & Planning Committes) elther
with delegated authority to make decislons or for the purpose of providing advice and support, informing the overall
work of the Trust Board. However, these committees are not legally responsible or accountable for statutory
functions — the Trust Board retains overall accountability and responsibility.

The responsibilities of board committees are set out in their terms of reference; The Trust Board will appolni
committee members and Committee Chairs.

Delegation can be removed If trustees determine that a committee is unabie to meet key performance indicators.

Finance & Planning Committee

The trustees have appointed a committee known as the Finance & Planning Committee to act on matters delegated
by the Trust Board. The board delegates financial scrutiny and oversight, and which can support the board in

maintaining the trust as & going concern.

{{s terms of reference include:

« To review, adopt and monitor a Finance Policy which includes the local scheme of delegation for spending
and budgetary adjustments (virements) for the committee, Executive Headteacher and other nominated

staff.

To review, adopt and monitor all additional financial policles, Inciuding a charging and remissions policy.

To establish and maintain a three-year financial plan, taking into the account priorities of the Trust Strategic
Development Plan and Academy Development Plan, roll projection and signals from central government
and (if applicable) the LA regarding future years’ budgets, within the constraints of available information.

. To draft and propose to the trust board for adoption an annual academies budget considering the priorities
of the Trust Sirategic Development Plan and Academy Development Plan.

. To ensure any pay increments as set out in the Pay Policy and as recommended by the CEO/Headteacher
are included within the annual budget.

. Other areas of financial management, risk management, management of physical and human resources
and management of health and safety lssues.

The Finance & Planning Committee combines with the Audit & Risk Commitiee {in ine with ATH para 3.6).

The trust board will determine how often the committee meels,

r & P Committee Member Meetings attended Out of possible
Tom Montgomery (Chair F&P, Trustee) 2 3
Nick Luckock {Trustee} 3 3
Gary Smith (Trustee, Accounting Officer} 3 3
Tina Darker (DFO) 3 3

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEQ has responsibllity for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider sacietal
outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Accounling Officer accepts responsibility and accountability for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources during each academic year and reports to the board of trustess where value for money
can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate.

The Trust is committed to applying the four principtes of best value; Challenge, Compare, Consult and Complete.
improved value for money Is detivered during the year by:

« Ensuring all SLA's are reviewed at point of renewal

. Obtaining 3 guotes for expenditure over 10k

« Maximising income from leftings

« Performance Mahagement for all staff annuaily

. Reviewing staffing levels and continually streamline where possible and reviewing teacher contact ratlo
annually

The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of Intemal conirol is desighed lo manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to efiminate all risk of
fallure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it ean therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

of effectiveness,

The system of Internal control is hased on an ongolng process designed to identify and prioritise the risks fo the
achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and
the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically,

The system of internal control has been in place at The Basildon Academies for the year 1% September 2023 to a1
August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Flnancial Statements.

Capacity to handle risk
The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financlal and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.

The board of trustees is of the view that there is a fermal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the academy trust's significant risks that has peen in place for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up
to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the

hoard of frustees.

The risk and contro] framework
The Trusts system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In

particular, it includes:

. Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periadic financial reports
which are revlewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

. Regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financlal performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase pians, caplital works and expenditure programmes,

Sefting targats to measure financial and other performance;

Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
+ Delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

. Identlfication and management of risks
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Board of Trustees has appointed an internal auditor SBM Services and has had 6 additional area checks during
the academic year 1% September 2023 to 31t August 2024,

The schedule of work was on the followlng areas:

« Managing Business and Persanal interests
» Payroll

«» Purchasing and Creditors

« Bank and Cash

« VAT

« Leftings

No material issues were identified.

Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control,
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

L]

the work of the internal auditor;
the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management self-

assessment tool;

the work of the execufive managers within the acadeny trust who have responsibility for the develcpment and
maintenance of the internal contro! framework;

the work of the external auditor

correspondence from ESFA, ‘minded to’ letters,

The Accaunting Officer has been advised of the implications of the resuit of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance Committee and a plan to ensure continuaus improvement of the system is in place.

Conclusion
Based on the advice of the Finance and Planning committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of
the opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and

control.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on L"L{ i"'/M and signed on its behalf by:

(lew @j bl
D O'Donoghue
Chair of Trustees®
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

As accounting officer of The Basildon Academies, | have considered my responsibility to nolify the Board of
Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in
place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my considaration, | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook 2023,

| confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or impraper use of
funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Trust Handbook 2023,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, imprapriety of funding non-compliance has been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of Trustees

and ESFA.

%ﬂ
G 8mith
Accounting Officer

RV INANES
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The frustees (who are also the directors of The Basildon Academies for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (Unlted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the lrustees to prepare accounts far each financial year, Under company law, the trustees
must nat approve the accounts unless they are satisfled that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, far that period,

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:

. sefect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accotints Direction 2023 to

2024;
» make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject lo any material departures

disclosed and explained in the accounts; and
. prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it Is inappropriale to presume that the charitable

company will continue tn businass.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financlal management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
fhe charitahle company's websile, Leglstation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
aceounts may differ from legislation In other jurisdictions.

@W 0 ﬁﬂ»g“‘—"
D Q'Donoghue
Chair of Trustees*
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BASILDON
ACADEMIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of The Bastidon Academles for the year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the
statement of financlal activities, the balance sheet, the stalement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including
slgnificant accounting policies. The financlal reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the

Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinian the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its Income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Aecounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

have been prepared In accordance with the Charlties SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2023 to 2024,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
jaw. Our responsibilittes under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibliities for the audit of
the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust In accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the LK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We belleve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion.

Conclusions relating fo going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have cancluded that the frustees’ use of the going concern basis of

accounting In the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or coliectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concem for a period of at least twelve months from when the financlal statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsiblities and the responsibillties of the trustees with respect to going concem ate described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the Information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our
auditor's report thereon, The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we deo not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the
other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencles or apparent material misstatermnents, we are required to determine whether
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nhothing to repart in this regard.

“24 -




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BASILDON
ACADEMIES (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Opinions on other matters prescribed by-the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the Information given In the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees’ report including the incorporated stralegic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and Its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified materlal misstatemants in the trustees’ report, including the incorporated strategic

report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to repart to you If, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting recards have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been recelved
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees' responsibilities, the truslees are responsible for the preparation
of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemnal control as the
trustees determine Is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from materlal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or emror. In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy
trust's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using
the going toncern basis of accounting unless the trustees either Intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have

no realistic alternativa but ta do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are
considerad materiat If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled 1o influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with Jaws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibillties, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reascnably be expected to have a material effect on the
financlal statements from our. general commerclal and sector experience; through verbal and written
communications with those charged with governance and other management; and via Inspection of the Academy

Trust's regulatory and legal correspondence.

We discussed with those charged with governance and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compllance with laws and regulations.,

We communicated Iidentified laws and regulations to our team and remained alert to any indicators of non-
compliance throughout the audit, we also specifically considered where and how fraud may occur within the
Academy Trust.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varles considerably.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BASILDON
ACADEMIES (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Firstly, the Academy Trust is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements, including:
the Academy Trust's constifution; refevant financial reporting standards; company law; the Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their financial statements |n accordance with FRS 102
(effective from 1 January 2019); the Acadamies Accounts Directlon 2023-24; and we assess the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the refated financial statement iterns.

Secondly the Academy Trust is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on the amourts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance
through the Imposition of fines and penalfies, or through losses arising from litigations. We ldentified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an affect: legisiation directly applicable to charities sector such as the
Charities Act 2011, the Academy Trust's funding agreement; the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook
2023; employment legislation; heaith and safety lagislation; safeguarding legislation; the regulatary requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency; data protection legistations; anti-bribery and corruption legistation.

International Auditing Standards (UK) limit the required procedures to Identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to the procedures, and no procedures over and above those already noted are required, These limited
proceduras did not identify any actual or suspected non-compliance which laws and regulations that could have a

materlal impact on the financlal statements.

In relation to fraud, we performed the following specific procedures in addition to those already noted:

+ Challenging assumptions made by management in its significant accounting estimates in particular: Income
recognition, depreciation of tangible fixed assets, and valuation of local govemnment pension scheme deficit;

+ identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any entries posted with unusual nominal ledger account
combinations, journal entries posted by senior management;

+ Performing analytical procedures to Identify unexpecled movements in account balances which may be
indicative of fraud;

. Ensuring that testing undertaken on both the Statement of Financial Activity (SoFA) and the Balance Sheet
includes a number of items selected on a random basis;

+ Reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Goveming Body and key sub commitiees;
. Evaluating internal contro! and review procedures, and reviewing findings of internal audit reviews;
. Evaluating and documenting internal controls and testing their application by walkthrough;

« Reviewing the work carried out for the Regularity Assurance Report.

These procedures did not identify any actual or suspected fraudulent irregularity that could have a materal impact
on the financial statements.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
In accordance with International Auditing Standards (UK). For example, the further removed non-compliance with
laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected In the financial statements, the less likely the
procedures that we are required to undertake would Identify it. In addition, as with any audit, there remains 2 high
risk of non-detection of imegularities, as these might involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentation, or the override of intemal controls. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance with
laws and regulations or fraud, and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations or

every incidence of fraud.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

A further description of our responsibilities is avallable on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: https://
www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable campany's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

KMM‘ Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Rickard Luckin Limited IS([’L}B%
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor Phoenix House, Suite 8
Christopher Martin Road
Basildon
Essex
5514 3EZ
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE BASILDON ACADEMIES AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS

FUNDING AGENCY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

In accordance with the tarms of our engagement letter dated 11 April 2023 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Directlon 2023 to 2024, we
have carrled out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by The Basilden Academies during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to
the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform fo the authorities which govern them,

This report is made solsly to The Basildon Academles and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so thal we might state to The Basildon Academies and ESFA those matiers
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpase. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume respansibility to anyone other than The Basildon Academies and ESFA, for our work, for this

report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Basildon Acadamies'’s aceounting officer and the reporiing accountant
The accounting officer Is responsible, under the requirements of The Baslidon Acadermies's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 25 November 2021 and the Academy Trust Handbeok, extant from 1
September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactiens conform to the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether anything has come to
our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in alt material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applisd to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the finaneial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our

engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is te perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us fo obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identifled in a reasonable assurance engagement, Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken te draw to our conclusion includes:

Reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Governing Bedy and key sub committees;

Evaluating internal control and review pracedures, and reviewing findings of internal audit reviews;

« Reviewing action taken as a result of recommendations from internal audit procedures, external audit, and
ESFA updates,

Evaluating and documnenting internat controls and testing their application by walkihrough;

« Testing a sample of payments to ensure that they have been guthorised In accordance with the Academy's

financial procedures and the Academy Trust Handbook.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE BASILDON ACADEMIES AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY {(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Conclusion
in the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respscts the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

ng.fo%wcow««

Rickard Luckin Limited
Phoenix House, Suite 8
Christopher Martin Road
Basildon

Essex

5514 3EZ

Dated: |3I]Zjll{
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Tofal
funds General Fixed asset 2024 2023
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endewments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 2,672 - 2,083,862 2086534 1,214,748
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 - 14,508,193 - 14,508,193 13,172,599
Other trading activities 5 22,433 336,043 - 358,476 357,388
Investments 6 30,038 - - 30,038 384
Total 55,143 14,844,236 2,083,862 16,983,241 14,745,117
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations ) - 14,222,659 850,044 15,073,603 13,713,679
Total 7 - 14,222,659 850,044 15,073,603 13,713,679
Net income 55,143 621,577 1,232,918 1,008,638 1,031,438
Transfers between funds 18 (536,117)  (985,670) 1,521,787 - -
Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuariaf {losses)/gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 25 - {220,000; - (220,000) 1,724,000
Net movement in funds (480,974)  (584,003) 2,754,705 1,880,838 2,765,438
Reconcillation of funds
Total funds brought forward 480,974 2,271,593 49,094,767 51,847,334 49,091,896

Total funds carried forward -

1,687,500 51,849,472

53,536,972 51,847,334
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Year ended 31 August 2023 funds General Fixed asset 2023
Notes £ £ £ £

Inceme and endowments from:

Donatlons and capital grants 3 1,780 - 1,212,966 1,214,746

Charitable activitles:

- Funding for educational operations 4 - 13,172,699 - 13,172,592

Other trading activities 5 28,126 329,262 - 357,388

Investments 6 384 - - 384

Total 30,290 13,501,861 1,212,966 14,745,117

Expenditure on:

Charitable acfivities:

- Educational operations 8 - 13,014,958 698,721 13,713,679

Total 7 - 13,014,958 698,721 13,713,679

Net income 30,290 486,203 514,245 1,031,438

Transfers between funds 18 - {442,217) 442 217 -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 25 - 1,724,000 - 1,724,000

Net movement in funds 30,260 1,768,666 956,462 2,755,438

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 450,684 502,007 48,138,305 49,091,896

Total funds carried forward 480,974 2,271,503 49,094,767 51,847,334
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024
2024 2023

Notes £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 49,145,968 47,770,087
Current assets
Stocks 14 9,874 1,217
Debtors 15 3,263,921 1,641,480
Investments 750,000 750,000
Cash at bank and in hand 1,066,075 2,514,251

5,089,970 4,816,948

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 16 (698,966) (738,701)
Net current assets 4,391,004 4,078,247
Het assets excluding penslon liability 53,636,972 51,848,334
Defined benefit pension scheme Hability 25 - {1,000)
Total net assets 53,536,972 51,847,334
Funds of the academy frust:
Restricted funds 18
- Fixed asset funds 51,848,472 49,094,767
- Restricled Income funds 1,687,500 2,272,593
- Pension reserve - {1,000}
Total restricted funds 53,536,972 51,366,360
Unrestricted income funds 18 - 480,974
Total funds 53,636,972 51,847,334

The accounts on pages 30 {o 53 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on ll[[lilq-', and are
signed on their behalf by:

Sl

G Smith

Trustes and Accounting officer
Company registration number 06308595

-32-




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capltal grants from DfE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents In the

reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2024

£ £

101,192
30,038
647,416
(2,226,822)

(1,549,368)

{1,448,176)

2,514,261

1,066,075

2023
£ £
537,095
384
890,920
(1,685,542)
(750,000)
(1,544,238)
(1,006,243)
3,520,494

2,514,251
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

The Basildon Academles Is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is given on
page 1 and the nature of lts operations are set out In the trustees' report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out helow.

Basis of preparation

‘The accounts of the academy trust, which Is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charitles: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing thelr agcounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2008,

Golng concern

The trustees assess whether the use of golng concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The frustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for tssue of the accounts and have concluded that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
rmaterial uncertainties about the academy trust's ability fo continue as a going concern. Thus they continue fo
adopt the going concem basis of accaunting in preparing the acoounts.

Incame
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are Included in the stalement of financlal activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet, Where income Is recelved in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and Its recognition Is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is

recelved, the income is accrued,

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities In the period for which it is
recelvable, and any abatement in respect of the period Is deducted from income and recognised as a liabllity.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditiona! entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund, Capiial grants are
recagnised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are

expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship Income provided to the academy trust which amounts 1o a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the perlod in which it is receivable (where thers are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipl is prabable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donatlons are recognised on a receivable basls (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the recelpt Is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

14

1.5

Accounting policies {Continued}

QOther income
Other income, including the hire of facillties, ls recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the

academy frust has provided the goeds or services.

Donated goods, facilities and gervices

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it s practical to assess the fair value at racelpt, it is recognised In stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities'. Upen sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘4ncome from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value ftems they are not recognised in the accounts untii they are
sold. This Income Is recognised within ‘income from other trading activities'.

Denated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it Is Impractical to measure this reliably, In which case
the cost of the ltem to the donor is used. The gain ls recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount Is Included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreclated over the useful

economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting palicles.

Expenditure
Expenditure Is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligatian to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required In settlement, and the amount of

the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved In undertaking each activity, Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity, Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use,

All resources expended are inclusive of itrecoverable VAT,

xpenditure on rals] n
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Chari ivitles
These are costs Incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, Including suppart costs and costs
refating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities,

Tangib!e fixed assets and depreciation
The trust Increased its capitalisation limit in the year. Assets costing £1,500 or more are capitalised as tangible
fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund In the statement of financial
activities and carrded forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities, Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets [s charged to the unrestricted fund.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.6

1.7

18

1.9

1.10

1M

Accounting policies (Continued)

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a stralght-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land and buildings Up fo 125 years or useful life of Improvement
Computer equipment 3-10 years straight line
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 5-10 years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed assel Is carrled ou! if events or changes In clrcumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as Impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in ithe
statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabllities are recognised when there Is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past avent, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amaount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must

provide,

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-iine basis over the lease term.

Investments
Investments include cash on deposit with a maturity date of less than ane year.

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined In FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabllities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assels

Trade and other debtors are basic financlal instruments and are debt Instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabifities
Trade creditors, aceruals and other creditors are financial Instruments, and are measuted at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financlal instruments disclosure definition,

Deferred Income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there Is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock
Stack is valued at the lower of cost and net real'sable value. Net reslisable vaiue is based on eslimated selling
price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stock,

Taxation

The academy trust Is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therafore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK sorporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation In respect of Income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Sectlon 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charltable

pUrPOSes.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.12

1.13

1.14

Accounting policies {Continued)

Pensions beneflts
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS')
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are

held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the penslen cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method, The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with ho underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contripution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recagnised in the

period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded mutti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennlally and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income or expendilure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
Incurred. Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assels at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised In other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charltable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capltal purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent In distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments received
from ESFA and subseguent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities
as the academy trust doss not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The funds received
and paid any balances held are disclosed in note 27.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgemant

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experlence and
other factors, Including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the

clrcumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, sefdom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a materlal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and labliitles within the next financial year are discussed below.
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement {Continued)

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions Include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the pension llability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects resuits from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liabllity at 31 August 2024. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying

amount of the pension Fability.

Critical areas of ludgement

In the application of the company's accounting policies, the trustees are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from othar sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. The only case whereby this arises is in respect of the depreciation
policles relating to the fixed assets held by the academy, which are based on the estimated useful lives of the

assets.

3  Ponations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 2,083,862 2,083,862 1,212,966
Other donations 2,672 - 2672 1,780

28672 2,083,862 2,086,634 1,214,746
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

4 Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG) - 10,816,198 10,816,198 10,427,349

Other DfE/ESFA grants:
~ Pupil premium - 1,005,232 4,005,232 636,298
- MSAG - 402,039 402,039 164,717
- 16-19 Funding - 1,421,301 1,421,301 1,075,113
- Teachers pay and pension grant - 382,032 362,032 36,587
- Recovery grant - 215,176 215,176 217,802
- Others - 126,642 126,642 205,361

. 14,368,620 14,368,620 12,764,027

Other government grants

Local authority grants - 139,673 139,573 45,197
COVID-19 additional funding

DfE/ESFA

Other DFE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - - - 363,375
Total funding - 14,508,193 14,508,193 13,172,589

5 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Resiricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Hire of facllities 22,433 - 22,433 28,126
Catering income - 227,763 227,763 183,208
Other income - 73,031 73,031 94,388
Trips and acfivities - 35,249 35,249 41,666
22,433 336,043 358,476 357,388

6 Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 30,038 - 30,038 384

-39 -



THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

7  Expenditure

Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 7,933,143 - 1,309,649 9,242,792 8,139,184
- Allocated support costs 2,684,093 2,160,066 986,652 5,830,811 5,674,495
10,617,236 2,160,066 2,296,301 15,073,603 13,713,679
Net incomef{expenditure) for the year inciudes: 2024 2023
£ £
Operating lease rentals 39,137 34,929
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 850,944 698,721
Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit 18,680 20,190
- Other services 1,875 1,500
Net interest on defined benefit pension Hability {21,000) 57,000
8 Charitable activities
2024 2023
Alf from restricted funds: £ £
Direct costs
Educational operations 0,242,792 8,139,184
Support costs
Educational operations 5,830,811 5,574,495
15,073,603 13,713,679
Analysis of costs 2024 2023
£ £
Direct costs
Teaching and educational support staff costs 7,944,730 6,903,395
Staff development 50,500 57,767
Technology costs 175,619 121,022
Educational supplies and services 542,229 497,435
Examination fees 317,167 249,576
Educational consultancy 212,547 339,449
Other direct costs - 540
9,242,792 8,138,184
Support costs
Support staff costs 2,684,003 2,510,138
Depreciation 850,944 608,721
Recruitment and supporl 71,503 61,160
507,036 560,717

Malntenance of premises and equipment
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

8 Charitable activities

Cleaning

Energy costs

Rent, rates and other accupancy costs
Insurance

Security and transport

Gatering

Finance cosls

Other support costs

Governance costs

9  Staff

Sta¥f costs and employee benefits
Staff costs during the year were:

Wages and salaries
Soctal security costs
Pension costs

Staff costs - employees
Agency staff costs

Staff development and other staff costs

Total staff expenditure

Statf numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows!

Teachers
Administration and support
Management

{Continued)

69,872 69,958
£649,079 407,167
116,516 69,763
46,619 76,508
54,652 54,274
328,617 297,044
(21,000) 57,000
498,007 667,493
53,873 44,554
5,830,811 5,674,495
2024 2023

£ £
8,099,142 7,172,106
753,103 640,676
1,498,080 1,407,448
10,350,325 9,229,230
266,911 177,576
10,617,236 9,406,806
62,087 64,4892
10,679,323 6,471,208
2024 2023
Number Number
66 66

188 180

16 17

270 263
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THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

10

11

12

Staff {Continued)

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national Insurance condributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2024 2023

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 4 3
£70,001 - £80,000 1 1
£80,001 - £90,000 3 -
£80,001 - £100,000 1 1
£100,000 - £110,000 1 -

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer natlonal insurance contributions) received by key management persannel for thelr services to
the academy frust was £721,619 (2023: £605,989).

Central services

No central services were provided by the academy trust to its academies during the year and no central
charges arose.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more of the trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy trust. The CEO and other staff trustess only receive rermunsration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of CEO and staff members under thelr contracts of employment, and not in

respect of their services as trustees,

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows!

G Smith (CEO and trustee):
. Remuneration £105,000 - £410,000 (2023 - £95,000 - £100,000}
. Employer's pension contributions £30,000 - £35,000 (2023 - £20,000 - £25,000)

A Gurney (staff trustea).
« Remuneration £90,000 - £85,000 (2023 - £75,000 - £80,000)
« Employer's pension contributions £25,000 - £30,000 (2023 - £18,000 - £20,000)

During the year anded 31 August 2024, no trustees received any reimbursement of expenses (2023 - £nil).

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out within the related parties note.

‘Trustees' and officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Profection Arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover lusses {hat arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers fram claims arising from negligent acts, errors ar omissions occurring whilst on academy trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers
indemnity alement from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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13 Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 September 2023
Additlons

At 31 August 2024
Depreciation

At 1 September 2023
Charge for the year
At 31 August 2024

Net book value
At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

14 Stock

Stock

15 Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other faxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Land and Computer  Fixtures, Total
buildings equipment fittings &
equipment

£ £ £ £

48,146,422 1,302,842 2,802,761 62,252,025

505,454 184,478 1,136,890 2,226,822

49,051,876 1,487,320 3,939,651 54,478,847

2,863,087 570,105 1,048,746 4,481,838

391,820 160,404 298,717 850,841

3,254,807 730,509 1,347,463 5,332,872

45,796,969 756,811 2,692,188 49,145,968

45,283,335 732,737 1,754,015 47,770,087

2024 2023

£ £

9,974 11,217

2024 2023

£ £

11,620 1,607

349,115 124,854

2,903,186 1,415,019

3,263,921 1,541,480

2024 2023

£ £

319,569 220,257

176,776 168,477

50,767 2,379

151,854 347,588

698,066 738,701
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17

18

Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:

Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2023

Released fram previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2024

2024 2023

£ £
10,006 146,231
146,231 79,549

(146,231) (79,549)
10,906 148,231
10,906 146,231

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for the catering card and

SEN income.

Funds

Restrictad general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium

Other DIE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Penslon reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion
DIE group capltal grants

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure transfers 2024

£ £ £ £ £
2,272,503 10,816,188  (10415,621) (985,670) 1,687,500
- 1,005,232 {1,005,232) - -

- 2,547,190 {2,547,180) - -

- 139,573 {139,573) - -

- 336,043 {336,043) - -

(1,000} - 221,000 {220,000) -
2,271,593 14,844,236  (14,222,659)  (1,205670) 1,687,500
45 283,335 - {384,928) - 44,898,407
3,811,432 2,083,862 {466,016} 1,521,787 6,951,065
49,094,767 2,083,862 (850,944) 1,521,787 51,849,472
51,366,360 16,928,098  (15,073,603) 316,117 53,536,972
480,974 55,143 - (536,117) -
51,847,334 16,983,241  (15,073,603) (220,000) 53,536,972
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18

Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant
The Academy is not subject to a restriction via its Funding Agreement on the amount of General Annual Grant

(GAG) that it can carry forward.

Other DfE/ESFA and government grants
Other grants Include grants received from the DfE and Local Educalion Authorltias for specific purposes,

Fixed asset fund
The fixed asset fund includes grants received from the DfE and other sources to finance the purchase of

tangible fixed assets,

Pension reserve
The pension reserve Is the element of the local government pension fund liability atiributable to the Trust.

Transfers
£1 513,203 was transferred from GAG/unrestricled funds to DFE capital grants to cover the cost of fixed asset

additions, £8,584 was transferred from GAG to DFE capital grants for the contribution for the CIF bid.

- 45 -



THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

18 Funds {Continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2022 Income Expendlture transfers 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 2,130,907 11,502,462  (10,918,559) {442,217) 2,272,593
Pupil premium - 636,998 {636,998) - -
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 624,567 {624,567} - -
Other government grants - 408,572 (408,672) - -
Other restricted funds - 329,262 (329,262} - -
Pension reserve (1,628,000) - {87,000} 1,724,000 {1,000}
502,007 13,501,861 (13,014,958} 1,281,783 2,271,593
Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion 45,668,263 - (384,928) -~ 45,283,335
DfE group capital grants 2,426,542 1,212,966 (270,293) 442 217 3,811,432
Private sector capital
sponsorship 43,500 - (43,500) - -
48,138,305 1,212,866 (698,721) 442 217 49,004,767
Total restricted funds 48,641,212 14,714,827  (13,713,679) 1,724,000 51,366,360
Unrestricted funds
General funds 450,684 30,280 - - 480,974
Total funds 49,091,896 14,745,117  (13,713,679) 1,724,000 51,847,334
Total funds analysis by academy
2024 2023
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows! £ £
Basildon Upper Academy B43,750 1,376,784
Baslldon Lower Academy 843,750 1,376,783
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 1,687,500 2,753,567
Restricted fixed asset fund 51,849,472 49,094,767
Pension reserve - {1,000}
53,536,872 51,847,334

Total funds
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19

20

Funds {(Continued)
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support  Educatlonal exciuding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Basitdon Upper Academy 2,562,874 605,174 885377 1,110,017 5,253,442 610041
Basildon Lower Academy 5,370,269 2,190,917 424,274 1,204757 9,180,217 6,817,580
7,033,143 2,886,091 1,309,651 2,314,774 14,443,659 12,917,861
Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 49,145,968  49,145968
Current assels - 2,386,466 2,703,504 5,089,970
Current liabilities - {698,966) - (698,9686)
Total net assets - 1,687,500 51,849,472 53,536,972
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 47,770,087 47,770,087
Current assets 480,974 3,011,294 1,324,680 4,816,948
Current [iabifities - (738,701) - {(738,701)
Pension scheme liabliity - (1,000} - (1,000}
Total net assets 480,974 2,271,503 49,004,767 51,847,334
Capital commitments
2024 2023
£ £
2,660,618 1,417,418

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts

The capital commitment relates to two CIF projects in regards to boiler and heating distribution replacement at
the Lower Academy and urgent fire safety and electrical improvement work at the Upper Academy.
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22

23

24

Long-term commitments

Operating leases

At 31 August 2024 the total of the academy frust’

operating leases was!

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in two and flve years

s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activitles

Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial

activities)

Adjusted for:

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Investment income recelvable
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance (income)/cost

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Decreasef{increase) in stocks
{Increase)/decrease In debtors

{Decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

Analysis of changes in net funds

Cash

Members' ITability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to con
it being wound up while he or s
suich amount as may be require
ceases to be a member.

he is a member, or within

2024 2023

£ £

39,137 34,244

10,924 31,996

50,081 66,240

2024 2023

Notes £ £
1,909,638 1,031,438
(2,083,862)  (1,212,966)
6 {30,038} (384)
25 (200,000) 40,000
25 (21,000} 57,000
850,944 698,721
1,240 {4,103)

(285,995) 44,026
{39,735) (115,737}

101,192 537,995

1 September  Cash flows 31 August
2023 2024

£ £ £
2,514,251 (1,448,176} 1,066,075

tribute to the assets of the company in the event of
ohe year after he or she ceases to be a member,
d, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
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Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to iwo principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales {TPS) for academic and related siaff; and the Local Government Penslon Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which Is managed by Essex Penslon Fund. Both are multi-employer defined

henefit schemes,

The pension costs are assessed In accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarlal valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS related to the

period ended 31 March 2022.

Thete were no outsianding or prepaid contributions at gither the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Penslon Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, confributory, defined benefit scheme, governad by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to cpt out of the TPS following enrolment,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributlons are credited to the Exchequer, Refirement and other pension

benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Penslon Scheme

The Governmeni Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a forma! actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the leve! of future contributions, Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors, The latast actuarial valuation of the TPS was camied out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on § March 2019.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020, The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 Qctober 2023, with the SCAPE rate,
set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key elements of

the valuation outcome are!
+ Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of penslonable pay (including a 0.08% administration

levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no

change in member benefits s needed.

. Total scheme liabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributlons
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a

notional past service deficlt of £39,800 maillion.

The result of this valuation will be Implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation resull is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amaunted to £839,062 (2023: £807,643).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachets' Pensions websile.

Z49.




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

25 Pension and similar obligations

{Continued)

Under the definiions set out in FRS 102, the TPS i& an unfunded muiti-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabifities of the plan. Accordingly, the
academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has has accounted for its contributions
to the scheme as if it were a deflned contribution scheme. The academy trust has sel out above the

Information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustea-administered

funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are
employers and 5.5-12.5% for employees.

26% for

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published

on GOV.UK,
Total contributions made 2024
£
Employer's contributions 770,000
Employees' confributions 191,000
Total contributions 961,000
Principal actuatial assumptions 2024
%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8
2.8

Rate of increase for penslons in payment/infiation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5,05 - 5.1
inflation assumptian (CP)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality ra
assumed life expectafions on retirement age 65 are:

2024
Years
Retiring today
- Males 20,7
~ Females 233
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 22
- Females 247

2023
£

§70,000
142,000

N

712,000

2023
%

3.8
2.9
535
29

tes. The

2023
Years

20.7
23.2

22
24.6
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
+0.1% 0.0% .0.1%
Adjustment to discount rate £ 3
Present value of total obligation 10,518,000 10,707,000 10,802,000
Projected service cost 778,000 802,000 528,000
[+0.1% 10.0% 10.1%
Adjustment to long term salary increase E i |3
Present value of total obligation 10,713,000 $0,707,000 10,701,00
Projected sernvice cost 802,000 802,000 802,000
[+0.1% 0.0% 0.1%
Adjustment fo pension Increases andf £ 5
deferred revaluation
Present value of total obligation 10,900,000 10,707,000 10,520,000
Projected service cost 829,000 502,000 777,000
+1 Year None 11 Year
Adjustment  to  life  expectancyf £ 3
assumptions
Present value of total obligation 11,038,000 10,707,000 10,386,000
Projected service cost 831,000 802,000 775,000
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2024 2023
Falr value Fair value
£ £
Equities 6,324,000 5,528,000
Gilts 194,000 121,000
Cash 162,000 278,000
Property 790,000 743,000
Other assels 3,755,000 2,829,000
Total market value of assets 11,255,000 0,499,000
Restriction on scheme assets {548,000) -
10,707,000 9,498,000

Net assets recognised

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,132,000 (2023: £590,000),
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25 Pansion and similar obligations (Continued}
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 2024 2023

£ £

Current service cost 570,000 610,000
interest cost (21,000) 57,000

Total amount recognised 549,000 667,000

The net gain recognised on scheme assets has heen restricted because the full pension surplus is not
expected to be recovered through refunds or reduced contributions in the future.

Changes in the present value of defined henefit obligations 2024
£

At 1 September 2023 9,500,000
Current service cost 563,000
Interest cost 502,000
Employee contributions 191,000
Actuarial loss/{(gain) 281,000
Banefits paid (330,000}
Al 31 August 2024 10,707,000

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

2024

£

At 1 September 2023 9,492,000
Interest income 523,000
Actuarial gain 609,000
Employer contributions 770,000
Employee contributions 194,000
Benefits paid {330,000)
Effect of non-routine settlements and administration expenses (7,000}
At 31 August 2024 11,265,000
Restriction on scheme assets {548,000)

Net assets recognised 10,707,000

“52 -




THE BASILDON ACADEMIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

26

27

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the frustees
have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook and In accordance with the academy trust's financial
reguiations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The
following related party transactions took place In the financial period.

T Smith, spouse of G Smith, the CEOQ, is employed by the academy lrust as a staff member. T Smith's
appointment was made In open competition and G Smith was not Invoived in the declsion-making process
regarding appointment. T Smith Is paid wiihin the normal pay scale for her role and receives no speclal
treatment as a result of her relationship to the Head Teacher.

D O'Donoghue, the Chair of Trustees, is also a trustee of AQA. During the year ending 31 August 2624 total
transactions with AQA totalled £922. In entering into the transaction, the academy trust has complied with the

requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2024 the academy trust received £85,676 (2023; £35,673) and distributed £67,143 (2023:
19,715) from the fund. An amount of £44,300 (2023: £25,767) is included in other creditors relating to

undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA,
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